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STEPHEN COCKEY HOUSE

Exhibiting two different early methods of construction, thes Stephen
Cockey House should be seen as one of Baltimore County's important
early buildings. The largest sand most formal section of the dwelling is

a Federal period (1790's - 1820's) structure with full two story log
walls, It is a side hall =nd parlor arrangement with mouldinzs and mantle-
pieces of the period.

There is slso 8 L's story stone section to the house which forms
the north wing. Physical evidence suggest that this structure may have
been an earlier duplex dweiiing with massive interior cuimueys on each
end. That this small stone cottage would be enlarged by the log Federal
block thus becoming a substantisl farm hiouse is some indicstion of the
growth of the Cockey family and the development of this neighborhood.

It was in the first decsde of the 19th century that the Falls Turnpike
was completed within sizht of this house and in addition to their farm
the Cockeys operated a nearby tavern that is still standing.

There are some early outbuildings with this house inecluding a2 stone
meathouse, the remains of a2 stone carriage house and a combination stone
and post-and-beam bank barn. There is also a family cemetery with a good
many tombstones some of which date from the late 1Bth century.
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The house waich the History of the ireen Spring Valley cslls the
"Stephen Cockey House™ is an extremely interesting building that can tesch
us much about esrly Baltimore County srchitecture. It was the main house for
3 180 acre farm that is one of at least three Cockey family homesteads
remaining in the area. The nortlern part of the county owes much of its
history to that family which settled here in the late l7th century. This
particular house is no grand dwelling but is instead sn example of the more
typical home for a large farming family. It is typicsl insofar as the house
evolved over a period of time and is illustrutive of the different building
techniques which were employed in rural areas between the end of the Colonial
era and the more settled years of the lste Federal and early Victorian periods.
" The present building is derived from two distinctly different;periodg.
The "new® portion is a large central hall plan house with both stories of
all four walls being of log or plank construction. An older 1% story wing
is of stone construction and shows evideénce of hgving been 3 duplex with massive
chimneys at esch end. While one write-up mskes the log portion of this house
out to be morz of & "big house®™ than it is there is certainly & marked con- ‘
trast between the slmost purely functional stone dwelling(s) that constitute ::)
the north wing and the more formsl qualities exhibited b the south section. s
In it there is consideration for a formal parlor, a spexific dining area and
the rooms are trimmed out with arciitrave-like mouldings. The south parlor
has 8 simple but decorative mantlepiece with a channeled surround that appesrs
Pederal in nature.

The stone structure, however, creates living spaces thst are minimel
in size with all of the living functions being restricted to one room up
and one down in each half of the building. The lower room is the principal
living ares and it hss 2 total orientation to the lsrge fireplace that is
served by & massive interior chimney. This sole source of heat was nat taken
for granted in a climete that is not all together kind in the winter months.
This little duplex was compact shelter unconcerned with image or position,

Exterior- .

The north wing of this house may be read as an independsnt stone struc-
ture to which the two story log building wes added later. This section is
a 1% story building that is ‘our buys long snd two deep. It is capped with
a gable end roof with shsllow eaves. Theres is an interlor end chimmey on
the north end and interior evidence suggests that there was one in the south
end as well., The existing chimney is stone on the interior with a brick cap.
The interior bays of both the esst and west facades contain what sppear
to he originsl side-by-side sepsrate entrances, These are the strongest
suggestion of a duplex plan. The outer bays of the first level have a 6/
sash window with smeller 9 light cssements sbove. The inner bays of the upper =~
story are unvented.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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The north end is windowless, Tongue=and-=groove prairu *ng beneath the
ends of the asphalt rosfing suggest that the roof 1s replescement materieal.
Modern stucco conceals the stone construction, uowever, a3 majar portion
3f this meterial hss fallen from the northwest corner thus revesling the
originegl consiruction. Multi-colored random stones asre laid with no coursing.
Occasional brick rubble is visible. If the other windows are identical to
the lower northwest wiandow thev have thick wooden sills and brick segmentsl
srches., The doors and windows {west side) have meiching fresmes consisting
of wide besded panels. They ars as wide as the walls are thick - 181,
There :

gre batten doors on the waest side.
8]

This bullding ig 22' deep and 28' lons. “hile the fenestration is regular
the stone wing exhibits the s:me unbalance as the 1oz portion in that one
half of the building is lonzer than the other. On the west fscade, for instance,
the north window is Sk from the end of the bullding; the south window ounly
30%, The large interior chimney of the log wing may sccount for this im-
balance in that portion; the “shoriness” of the soutn hall of the stone ssction
may b

c s €
e dirz to the removal of the original south end wall.
The interior of the stone wing is 1i st of a duplex in that one hslf
mirrors the other with respect to ssch s g en east end west door, an east
and west window, end fireplaces and corner string stairs. Those of the south
half occupy v the soutnwest corner of the room snd those of the north half
the northeast corner. The stairs in the soulh room, however, may have been
relocsted in avd 2y Lo accomodate 8 doorway into tne dining room of tne added
kog portion. The two rooms are currently connected.

OP“
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The present occupant altered the nortn fireplace but recalls its largeness
and the crene referred to in the two orinted articles on tiis house. One
cen still see, bowever, that this fireplace was servea by s messive interior
stone chimney that is 59" wide protruding into the room 29v,

While this structure msxes z strong statement about the no nonsens
qualitv of esrly rarsl architecture the building is not puritenical i nature
either., Plain srchitrave moulding decorates the doors snd windows,

The upper room of eech half is characterized oy the trupezoidsl ceilings
comnon to ‘s stories, It mizht be sroperly termed s 3/l story, however, since
the distance of the plates sbove the floor is 68“, Altrough they sre visible
in other places in the south section the Llogs of thst portion are most cleerly
seen in the upper room of the south half of the stone bullding. The south wail

thst room exaibit. hewn 1o7s, 7%" thick and 10" wide with plaster and chinking
in between.

The upper north room o
existence of the interior chimne,
place., The chimney et this point i

There is no known cellar nor i
Exterior-

The two story ceniral hall nouse which
this building is the "newer" of the two part
at lesst 1LO yesrs old snd probably more.

The exterior of this portion is covered with the ssme brown stucco as
the north wing. Tbe two story construction is three unegqusl bays wide and
two deep, and is of loz conmstruction. The exterior was covered with clap-
bosrds. The bu i;dlng rests on a 15" fieldstone foundation and has 2 gable-
end roof with deeply corniced gables. Interior end chimneys exit at the ridge.

{2
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e buildinz agaein is dominated bv the
here is no visible evidence of 2 fire-
591 wide protruding 29" into the room.
there an accessseble crswl-gpace.

sonstitutes the south half of
. Conservative dating makes it
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Item 7, page 3

Perhaps beczuse o>f the larger interior chimnev on the south end the
fenestretion is regular but not centered to the block. Most windows have
been altered to 1/1 sash but there are tall snd short L/l sa
facade.

The west fscade is the wmain side o
its centrally located door and full sin
nis side was not stuccoed and remains
alterations. .. The first flsor wondows c

ing 87" x 30", These are set in besded ?rameq The door has been altered to
accomodate 3 Victorisn round arch raised panel door with sidelights snd transom.
The windows have louvered shutters. The porch itself consists wmostly of

modern meterisls although the fieldstone and bricxk foundstion sugzests that

it mignt be a replacement.

The north end of the south wing 1s obscured by the stone wing except
for the upper gable which 1s windowless. Both gables are deeply corniced.
Butt joined soffit trims the eaves.

The south end exhibits regular two bay fenestration on all three levels.
1/1 sash apvear in the vents of the first two stories and small caSQmeﬁts
vent the attic. 4 recent fire resulted in an emergency opening being bbopped
into the cenirally iocated fireplace. This opening reveals g hesvy hewn sill
and the previously described logs.

The east fscade repeats the appearance of the first, only it 1s stuccoed
and has no porch.

Interior-

The interior of the south section follows the stape of a center hell plan
on both floors. 4 relatively narrow hall 5%' in width seperates parlors of
nearly egual dimensions on the first floor. The north wing apnarently became
the kitchen st one woint and the north parlor of the south wing was 2 dining
room., A Tlue-chimmney serves t4is room and the south half 5f the stone wing.

The south perlor has a formsl quality derived from the large windows, the
decorative mouldings (areritrave witr 3/l round edges) and the simple but
decorative Federal style mantle. 4 lerge interior and chimmey protrudes into
the r>om 32%, The present floor consists of 87" tongue-and-groove.

The hell conteins a stairway along the north wall which hes a definite
"ormal quelity but is not s "grand stairs™ in the truest sense. These are open
string switchbeck stairs with plain stepends, 2 turned newel and balusters.

The railing and balusters appear to be walnut.

The stairs lead to the second level where 2 hail seperates hslves that
are subdivided to make four bedrooms. The northeast room connects with the
upper story of the stone bullding. The upper hell contains an enclosed stalrs
lesding to the sttic.

The sttic is unfinished and exhibits much in the way of esrly fabric.
Vertically sswn principal raefters form trusses and ere fixed st the ridge
with a joint snd trunnel. They ere reinforced with collar besms lap
joined end fixed with nails. Non-functional double struck nails wers observed
in this area as well, }eﬁn stuas fixed with strucx nails frame up the gable
ends. These {imbers hsve a swmootn finished guality on two sides znd 2 hewn
appearance on the olther. Purlins with shake shingles can oe seen from under-
neath. The rafiers rest on flat false plstes.

se snd is charscterized by

. The lower storv of
Thev may be Victorian
eiling openings messur-
T
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Logs (planks?) 6" = 7" in thickness hsve been verified in all four walls
on botn levels. The ug per logs of the end wells can bDe seen in the attic by
1ifting floor bosrds. The floorboards are random widith, some are very wide
and measure up to 175", Most of the southesst corner of the attic is covered
with these wider boards., Ii was observed that nearly all of them in inis area
have newspspers attached to thelr undersides. One was lifted and it wss Ob=
served that the paper was s c. December, 1822 Bzltimore periodical {American?).
Pieces of plaster or thick white wesh attached suggests that perhaps the
ceiling of the room below once hed exposed celing Jjoists and that they and
the exposed floorbosrds were plastered snd painted. The newspaper may have
been 2 combinstion insulzior and binding agzent.

Among the many curious advertisements, shipping notices and aunouncements
appesring in the one ovaper ohserved was for a sale in Jsnuary 2h, 1823 by
order of the Orphans Court of Rsliimore for items including paintings 'of
horses by 3tubbs.”

45 twd story log houses of this size are not well known in this rezion
it seemed necessary to verify the existence of logs at both levels of 2ll
four walls. ZLogs 6" to 7% thick (deep) snd 10" and wider that have chinked
seperations of 6" can be sesn on both levels of the north wall from the nort

side standing JLtHLH the gtone wing. Similar logzs can be seen in the south

- wall, four of them can be seen on the outside in the damaged fireplace opening,
at lesst two csn be seen from the attic. 3unctures in the plaster and sepera-
tions in the corners of the upper rooms allow & very limited look st logs in
the side wells.

There is a cellar benestn this section. It s a full basement with rubble
walls thet show some attempt a2t coursing. joists can be sesen wanich still
contain their berk., They may be chestnut. vy are 107" to 11¥ in dismeter.
There is gn interior stairs to the cellar locoted benesth the mein stairs in
the hall and there is g bulkhead at the northeast corner of the room.

L) [
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Outbuildings-

Thirty=two feet {rom the northeast corner of the stone portion of the
house is a bullding perceived to be a meathouse.

This windowless, stone building is made of rubble {quoining on corners)
with 2 zable end roof. It runs Eest 1o WJest and measures 12' L™ in width,
18' in length with 7%' between the eaves and ground. Frsze chicken coops have
been added to the east end and the remanants of s western shed projects from
the roof,

The roof has decayed and is partislly collapsed as is a portion of the
north wall,

On the i 1e can see 3 brick floor, exposed hewn tie
end a truss ch vem hat had upver and lower d,vetallee collsr beams fixed with
cut neils. The principal rafters sre anchored into log plates t are
on three sides {fourth side is round). The rafters are V-noten
plates wnich are anchored ints ithe stones of the wall. The trus
with lsrge 6" cut spikes.
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In addition 1o being windowless other evidence 5f this bullding having
been z meathouse is the presence of mesthooks snd neils with siring all fixed
into the exposed beams. There are also loose longitudinsl tie poles with bits
of heavy string. These timbers, reiters agnd purlins have blsckened sppearances
suggesting the smoking process although no vents are visible in the ro:zf,

The morter of the easst end wall contains pottery and broken glass.

Stone wagon shed/barne
On the north side of the land which runs East to the grsveyard are the
remains of a stone structure. The 1918 Tax Assessment of the Stephen Cockey
property refers to a wagon shed on this parcel. The olowing of a garden
within the foundstion walls produced bushels of horseshoes, harness hardwsre,
low discs, hinges, etc. much of which wss piled zlonz the sides at the time
f recording (jec., 1978). Charred timbers sugszest s fire. '
This building also ran Tast to West in length although it probably had
an orientation to the sputh. The foundations are 36' long end 25' deep
{exterior)}. The foundstion is 357" high on the northwest corner. Five stone
plers are in 2 line on the south side spanning 3 distance of 27'. Each pier
ig I%' x 22", The southesst pier is 46“ high. These piers suggest thz po
bility of a two story structure, possibly a benk barn.
Joseph Mctlafirey, whose fsmily has lived on this lz2nd since the 1920's
says thst +he c. 1950's stone cottage which is just 2 short distance south of
this site i1s constructed of stone taken from this bsrn,

m
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Rank RBarn-

On the south sicve of the lane approximetely ons half the distance beiween
the dwelling and the grsveyard is a large bank burn tnat appears on the 1918
tex list znd wnich 1s probably s late 19th century builuing.
The builaing is 60' long and @ L0'deep. It is a proper post-and-beanm
structure resting on a stone bose. 3Belnz bullt into & "oank® this lower por-
tion constitubes its own story which appears to have been designed to sccomo-
date livestock (pr¢nc¢ually'norses) with the frame portion above being for
thhe stockage of hay, grains, snd agricultursl egulpment. ’
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The upper level is tri-partite with a central passage. The framing
consists of massive posts, sills, braces and plates that are fastened via
mortise~tenon-and trunnel. All of these members are hewn with the sills
measuring 15" x 117,

The zable end roof evidences at least one replacement. The siding is
vertical weatherboard attached with cut nails.

The lower level is defined by three uncoursed rubble walls (East,West,
North) with the south wall being s series of openings between piers. The
inner srea is divided into as many as 10 horse stalls (may be original).

The walls are 24" thick; there is quoining. There is a feed shiute in the
west end oif the lower room. This area exnibits impressive frawing which con-
sists of a spine-like summer beam and joists with supoort posts. These ele-
ments sre the same size as those above. The longitudinsl sills (60'} consists
of three equal parts that are scarfed and locked with trunnels.

The upper level of the souti side has an overhang of 8' that provides an
area below which is sheltered in tnree sides by the stone end-wslls and canti-
lever portion of the second story. In this ares one can see thie massive logs
that form the cantilevers and joists of the upper level. The stalls are
protected by a partition with an 8! setback and batten doors constructed
with eut nails.

Graveyard-

Perhaps 2 hundred yards or so to-the east of the basnk bsrn stand the
sad and dilspidated remains of the family graveysrd. Harsh weather, faollen
trees, horses and possible vandalism have resulted in the ruins of what was
a large graveyard containing thirty to forty graves. There are/were some
good examples of late 1Bth century and 19th century funerary sculpturs as well
as inscriptions besring valuable historical dsta, This graveysrd is one of
the sites reeosrded by the Baltimore County Historicsl Society.

The regular placement of fieldstones in this ares marks off plots if
not graves themselves. In other parts of Maryland (eg. Calvert County) field-
stone markers are associsted with the graves of slaves.

There were certainly other outbuildings on this farm. The present
occupants remember a springhouse that was demolished tiils year by building
gctivity on the lot sdjoining the west. The 1918 tax assessment makes
reference to a dsiry whnich may or not hsve been this structure.

A shed of mostly modern materials stands off of the soutneast corner
of the house wiich contains a festier edged clapboard that 1s wery esrly in
apoearance.

No privy site, blacksmithy, or slave quarters hsve been identified.
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREMISTORIC  _ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC  _COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  _RELIGION
—.1400.1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAaw __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 £ ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY " _SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
%1700-1788 _ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC __THEATER '
X1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY —_TRANSPORTATION
1800 __COMMUNICATIONS _INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —_OTHER (SPECIFY)

—INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES 178); - 1820's (post 1725 SJYILDER/ARCHITEC

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Exhibiting two different early methods of construction, the 3taphen
Cockey House should be seen as one of Baltimore County's importsat early
puildings., The lsargest snd most formal section of the dwelling is 2 Federal
period (1790's - 1820's) structure with full two story log wells., It is a side
hall and parlor srrangement with mouldings and mantlepieces of the period.

There is also a 1's story stone section to the house which forms the
north wing., Physical evidence suggest that this structure may have been
an esrlier duplex dwelling with massive interior chimneys on each end. That
this small stone cottzze would be enlarged by the log Federal block thus
becoming s substantial farm house is some indicstion of the growth of the
Cocksy family and the development of this neighborhood. It was in the first
decade of the 19th century thot the Falls Turnpiks was completed witnin
sight of this house and in addition to their farm the Cockeys operated a
nearby tavern that is still stending.

There are some early outbuildings with this house including a stone
meathouse, the remains of 2 stone carrisge house 2nd 8 combination stone
and post-and-beam bank barn. There is also a £smily cemetery with 2 pgood
many tombstones some of which date from the late 18th century.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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TITLE SEARCH FOR STEPHEN COCKEY HOUSE

Liber Folio Date Grantor Grantee
4897 237 July 9, 1968 Harry F. McCaffrey LeRoy E. Feddy et. al.
and wife
"Beginning...iron pipe set on north side of a road...40' wide...
being distant South 880 30' East 227.15 feet from a stone...
South 88° 30' East 253 feet...l® 30' East 357.05 feet...575°% 56!
West 200 feet .97 feet...5312° 35' West 308,87 feet to place of
beginning...containing 1.68 acres of land."
1766 142 July 7, 1949 Lillie C. MeCaffrey Harry F. McCaffrey & wf.
587 424 February 9, 1924 Charles Thomas Cockey Thomas McCaffrey

(Thomas McCaffrey died March 9, 1929 and by Last Will & Testament
dated February 23, 1928 in Will Book WJP 26/56 devised all real
estate to his wife Lillie C. McCaffrey)

"Beginning...a4t a stone, the end of the first line of lot # 1 on

the plat...filed in the will of Stephen Cockey...North 16 3/4°

West 145' to a stone planted in 1875 as a boundary in the division line
of the Cockey Estate...North 73%0 East 1679%'...South 11%° West
900'...North 88 3/4° West 1017%'...North &4 3/4° West 292' 9v,...

South 85%° West 355'...containing 19 37/100 acres...Being lot # 2,"

Will Book WJP 21/221 July 20, 1903 Stephen Cockey

Item # 2 = To his nephew Charles Thomas Cockey (son of Charles
0. Cockey) he left lot # 2 containing a dwelling and bank barn,
corn house and wagon shop, containing 19 37/100 acres. (with
other buildings.)

Will Book 4/225 May 14, 1873 John Cockey

92

"...to my sons Stephen Cockey and Samuel Cockey...the farm on
which I now live situated on Falls Turnpike.,..about 180 acres of
land...to be equally divided...beginning on the Falls Turnpike
Read about halfway between the blacksmith and wheelright shop
and the log dwelling house and to run in an easterly direction
through the said farm...that portion...on the south side...to
my son Stephen...and...on the north of said line...td0...5amuel..."

367 June 4, 1875 Stephen Cockey Samuel Cockey
Through the will of John Cockey the line drawn in the division

of the estate for sons Stephen and Samuel was not equal, therefore,
Stephen sells to Samuel 92 3/4 acres.
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The estste now known as the Stephen Cockey farm and the Cockey
Tavern are situated on land that for generations had belonged to the
Cockey femily.

This present site is only part of 600 acres purchased in December,
1725 by Thomes Cockey from Jonsthan Tipton, located northesst of the
pregent Falls Rosd = Joppa Rosd intersection. This land comprised
parts of tracts called Poor Jamsica Man's Plague, Port Royal, and
Addition to Port Rowal.

Through the line of inheritance, Thomas, Who died in 1737, left
the land to his nephew Thomss, who in turn willed the land to his sons
Stephen, Caleb, Charles and John.

The earliest records known > show development of the land into
& working farm are the 1798 Tsex Assessments. Stephen is listed as
owning parts of Poor Jamsice Man's choue, containing several buildings
including log dwellings, log and frame bsrns, a corn house, 3 lumber
house, and others. This lend is ‘bellevgn to be the same portion tnat
now contains the homestead and tavern, and it is Stephen for whom the
estate is named. It should be notuu, however, that the dimensions
ligsted in this tax assessment of the log trwc*grcs mateh neither the
log portion of the present dwelling or the log pa-tien of the tavern.

From 178li Stephen owned the land until his death January 3, 1797.
His share then belonged to his brother Johm. Not much is known about
thils brother, however 2 surviving grave stone in the family graveyard
records his death as being in 182L. ¥is son John, kuown as John, Sr.,
was born in 1788, inherited the land in 182k, and zoverned the estate
with his wife and children until his death in 1873.

With John, Sr.'s desth the estst as divided., His will dsted
May 1L, 1873 (WJP L/225) leaves the tevern and 1ot +t0 his son Joan, Jr.
"now occupied by him and conteining 3 acres or land.

Throuzh physical sxaminetion d oy way of esrly records 1t
seems that the tevern was huilt in the early 19th centurv. :

, Becsuse of iis con-
1s Hoad Turnpike, which had been
kely that the tavern was bullt in
lers which the new turnpike had

a©
o]

vénient location in relation to the Fa
under construction in 1808, it seems 1
order to accomodate the éﬂfLJX of trav
brought,

John, Sr. divided the ferm on which he lived *situated on the
Falls Turnpike" between his sons Stephen and Sasmuel, atV151ng the line
to begin "on tre Falls Tuwnpike Road sbout haliwav between the hlack=-
smith and wheelright shop and the log dwelling house and to run in en
easterly direction." After his death there was some nuestion over the
equ alltv of the dividing line. Stephen, who inbherited thot land south
of the line, *then sold to his brother Semel 92 3/l acres to settle the
disopute. Steohen then owned 107.9L acr

John, Jr., who wss evidentlv innkeaper »f ths tavern as well as
resident, only out lived his frther vy four yesrs. Upon his denth his
property was sold to his brother 3tephen.

The next division of the land occurred in 1903 when S3tephen divided

3 i T

his estzte ints five lots, recorded on a3 plat by T. H. Disney.
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STEPHEN COCKEY HOUSE

A short distance back from the ihtersection of
Falls Road and Green Spring Valley Road is one
of the old Cockey homesteads. It is reached by
a narrow lane that runs between the Green
Spring Inn and Graceline Kitchens, both of
which are situated on former Cockey land. The
property on which the house stands remained
in the family’s hands for two centuries. It would
seem that the house was named after the Stephen
Cockey who owned it from 1784 to 1797.

This property was acquired in 1725 by Thomas
Cockey, brother to Captain John Cockey who
lived at Oakdene (Summerfield). On 2 December
of that year Thomas purchased from Jonathan
Tipton 600 acres, parts of Poor Jamaica Man's
Plague, Port Royal, and Addition to Port Royal,
most of which lay on the east side of Falls Road

Tt PR

The Stephen Cockey House
Photograph by Thomas W. Mele Il
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and north of Joppa Road. Thomas died about
1737 in Anne Arundel County and apparently
never lived in the Green Spring Valley. By his
will this Valley land was left to his nephew,
Thomas Cockey, then age thirteen, son of Cap-
tain John Cockey.'

The younger Thomas Cockey acquired almost
2,500 acres of land in Middle River and Back
River Upper Hundreds in Baltimore County.
Although he was chosen in 1751 as a vestryman
for St. Thomas’ Church, a position offered to
men of good character and dependability, the
explanation given in 1779 by his wife Prudence
for having left him three years earlier presents
a different picture of the man. She charged that
her husband Thomas had, among other atrocious
acts, cruelly whipped and cut with a knife one
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of his Negro men, and shot another; that he
had stabbed his son John with a knife, badly
wounding him; that he had accused his son
Thomas of stealing his gold watch; that he had
offered his “favorite’” daughter, Achsah, £1,000
to poison her mother; and that he had pointed
a loaded pistol at Prudence and ordered her to
leave immediately or be killed. Mrs. Cockey
left, even though it was night, and took refuge
in a neighbor’s house. Cockey also tried three
times to hang himself.?

Thomas Cockey lived in the Worthington
Valley at Melinda’s Prospect, and when he died
in 1784 he left his real estate holdings to his
sons: his “beloved son” Charles received parts
of Selsed and Addition to Poor Jamaica Man's
Plague, and all of Land’s End; his “loving son”
John was given among other lands the remainder
of Addition to Poor Jamaica Man’s Plague; his
“beloved sons” Stephen and Caleb inherited
properties in the Worthington Valley; and all
four sons named were to divide the residue of
the property not specifically mentioned in his
will, with Charles receiving the home place.
That Thomas Cockey was displeased with his
son Thomas, Jr., was quite clear, for he left him
one shilling sterling and stated that he was
“never [to] enjoy any part of my estate.”?

The 1798 tax list shows both Stephen and
Caleb Cockey as owning portions of the land
tracts that comprised the Stephen Cockey home-
stead. No buildings were listed on Caleb’s land,
but a considerable number were mentioned as
being on that part of Poor Jamaica Man’s Plague
owned by Stephen Cockey, who died a year be-
fore the assessment was made. These buildings
included: 1 log dwelling house, 14 x 16 feet;
2 log dwelling houses, 16 x 20 feet each; 1 log

house that carries his name. When repairs were
made in the 1920s to the oldest part of the
house, the 1725 deed from Tipton to Thomas
Cockey and an old gun were found between the
walls. Stephen was unmarried, and by his will
filed on 3 June 1797 his estate was divided
among his relatives. The homestead passed to
his brother John.?

On 17 August 1785 John Cockey married
Mary Cole, by whom he had three sons and one
daughter. In 1823 he bought the three tracts that
comprised the Willowbrook (Wilton Wood)
estate, which he willed to his daughter Eliza-
beth. Further proof that John Cockey was living
at the Stephen Cockey homestead is revealed
in the 1808 will of his uncle, Captain John
Cockey, who refers to land lying “between John
Cockey of Thomas and Richard Caton [of
Brooklandwood].” Also, John Cockey was buried
on this estate when he died in 1824. This burial
ground “of John Cockey, Jr.,” still in existence

- though in run-down condition, was located "at

granary, 10 x 16 feet; 1 log barn, 22 x 36 feet;

1 log stable, 18 x 20 feet; 1 log stable, 22 x 32
feet; 1 frame barn, 24 x 44 feet; 1 corn house,
10 x 16 feet; and 2 old frame and log lumber
houses, each 10 feet square. A personal inven-
tory of Stephen Cockey’s belongings was taken
on 18 December 1797 and a value assigned of
£983.11.8. An additional inventory taken on
24 August 1798 totaled £139.14.6.*

The main portion of the Stephen Cockey
House was built of log covered with clapboard,
and one of the three log dwellings listed in the
tax list was probably this house. It seems likely
that it was this Stephen Cockey who built the

the end of a lane leading from beside the Green
Spring Inn on Falls Road up to the old Stephen
Cockey homestead,” about 1,200 feet behind the
dwelling. An inventory of Cockey’s personal
estate, made on 6 December 1824, totaled
$803.927>. Debts in the amount of $6,720 were
due the deceased.®

John Cockey of John married on 17 Novem-
ber 1814 Mary A. Fishpaw, and they had at least
six children. It is known with certainty that they

“lived in the old house and that he farmed his

180 acre estate. In 1850 “John Cockey, Sr.,”
owned real estate valued at $10,000. At the
time, his daughter Sarah, age twenty-five, son
Stephen, age fifteen, son and daughter-in-law,
Charles, age twenty, and Emile J(ane), age
twenty-four, were in his household. By 1870
“John Cockey, Sr.,”” then eighty-one, owned real
estate worth $29,790. His son Stephen and
daughter Sarah J. were in his household.’

“John Cockey, Sr.,” died in 1873. An inven-

- tory of his personal estate was made soon after.
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The household furnishings, farm animals, tools,
and crops were appraised at $2,429.60, with an
additional $977.60 in cash in the house. Cockey
was buried in the family graveyard beside his
wife who had died twenty-seven years earlier.
Other Cockey family members who were buried
here were the children of John and Mary (Cole)
Cockey: John Cockey (1788-1873) and his wife,
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Mary A. (Fishpaw) Cockey (1792-1846), and
Thomas Cockey (1787-1816). Also buried here
are John and Mary (Fishpaw) Cockey’s children:
Charles O. Cockey (1830-1896), Stephen Cockey
(1835-1920), Harriet Parks (1832-1861), wife
of John Cockey, Jr., and their infant son, Harah
May (1860-1861), and the three children of John
Cockey, Jr., by his second wife, Emma Hall;
Elizabeth (Cockey) Skipper (1820-1887), her
husband, Nimrod Skipper (1819-1852), and
their daughter, Mary Ann (Skipper) Collings
(1842-1866); Mary Ann Cockey (Parsons) Reed
(1835-1897), daughter of Edmund and Mary
Ann (Cockey) Parsons, and her husband, Samuel

John Reed (1827-1894), and their two infant

sons, John Edmund (1855-1856) and Samuel
Beauregard (1863-1864). There are names other
than Cockey-related names found here as well.
In 1956 John and Mary (Fishpaw) Cockey and
their sons, Charles O. and Stephen, were re-
interred in the cemetery at Sater’s Baptist
Church.®

By his 1873 will “John Cockey, Sr.,” left to
his son John, Jr., “the tavern and lot now oc-
cupied by him [John, Jr.],” 3 acres, which was
known as Cockey’s Tavern for many decades.
To his son Charles and daughters Elizabeth
Hammill and Sarah Jane Cockey, John Cockey
left his farm on Chestnut Ridge called Stans-
bury’s Plains, 346 acres, which had been willed
to the testator by his uncle Stephen Cockey, “to
be divided three ways.” His son Stephen received
King’s Evil, 62Y2 acres on Chestnut Ridge; and
another son, Samuel, was left Pleasant Green,
65 acres on Chestnut Ridge; both tracts had
been willed to the testator by his uncle. Sons
Samuel and Stephen were left the homestead,
180 acres, to be divided by a line which began
“on the Falls Turnpike Road about half way
between the blacksmith and wheelwright shop
and the log dwelling house and to run in an
easterly direction through the said farm on
which I live to the farm now occupied and
owned by John G. Rider.” The portion north of
the line went to Samuel; the portion south, con-
. taining the house described as “the log dwelling
house” and the cemetery, went to Stephen.?

Stephen Cockey was a bachelor, and before
he died in 1920 he had had his 7732 acre estate

divided into five lots, leaving one to each of his

four nephews and one niece, children of his
brother Charles O. Cockey. Lot number one,
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“the Tavern House Lot,” 2.07 acres, containing
a dwelling and stone stable, went to Joseph D.
Cockey. The property was then worth $3,500.
Today the Graceline Kitchens maintains its
office, showroom, and shop in the old house and
stable which were once known as Cockey’s Inn.
Lot number three, 21.82 acres, containing a
dwelling house, stable, and barrack, together
worth $5,700, went to Sterling L. Cockey. The
Windy Valley Drive-In and an Exxon station
are on this land now, as well as part of the golf
range behind them. Lot number four, 21.82 acres
of unimproved' land appraised at $6,600, was
willed to Laura (Cockey) Bosby. Lot number
five, 33%s acres of unimproved land valued at
$7,000, was left to Stephen Edgar Cockey. Both
of these lots have subsequently been divided
and sold and contain numerous private homes.
Lot number two, 19.37 acres, containing the
main dwelling, corn house, shop, and dairy,
appraised at $6,300, was left to Charles Thomas
Cockey. Stephen Cockey’s will carried the re-
stricting clause that this last lot was “subject to
right of ingress and egress to and from the
graveyard.” The Green Spring Inn stands on
a small portion of this lot.?°

On 9 February 1924 Charles Thomas Cockey,
widower, sold his property and the old Stephen
Cockey House to Thomas McCaffrey for $9,400,
with the stipulation that the cemetery be re-
served and that the road leading to it always
remain open. It was Mr. McCaffrey who found
the old deed and gun in the wall of the house
when he repaired it in 1924."

As has been stated, the main portion of the
large house was built of log covered with clap-
board. A stone addition was later added to the
north side. The house was painted white and for
years had green trim. There is a description of
the house dating from the 1950s, at which time
there was a massive door of four panels with
an old knocker at the main entrance. Inside was
a wide hall with a large and well-proportioned
patlor on the right and an equally large room
on the left. The parlor had four big windows
that once overlooked the fields and orchard.
Here was a brick fireplace and a large original
mantel of fine wood with panels on either side
with grooved trim.'?

A massive stairway between these two rooms
had wide gently rising steps and hand-turned
bzlusters and rails of walnut; the stairway led
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to the second floor, with the rail being carried
along the upper hallway. The stone addition on
the north side of the house contained two rooms
down and three rooms and-a bath (added by the
McCaffreys) up. The downstairs rooms each had
front and back entrances as well as their own
winding stairways to the floor above. These
stairs were very wide at one end, but at the turn
they narrowed so much that they were difficult
to climb. The one room was used as a kitchen
and the other as a living room, though in its
earlier years it had obviously been the kitchen
as it had an immense open fireplace with a
crane.*®

The entire house had heavy doors with old-
fashioned latches in place of door knobs. The
whole building was modernized by the McCaf-
freys. North of the house stands the stone
smokehouse now used as a storage area.’*

Today the old Stephen Cockey House is
crowded by overgrown hedges and trees. The
open fields that could once be seen from any
window are covered by houses and commercial
businesses. Time and progress have not been
kind to this house.?

COME BY CHANCE

On the northeast corner of the intersection of
Park Heights Avenue and Green Spring Valley
Road is a formal brick house with the provoca-
tive name Come By Chance. There is a story
about the origin of this name. One dark night
Richard Gist was riding through the Valley
when a storm forced him to seek shelter in a
grove of trees. He awoke in the morning to dis-
cover two natural springs on the property and
a slight rise of ground ideally suited to a house.
He was so taken with the property that he was
-said to have acquired it, built his house, and
named the place Come By Chance as he had
literally come upon the property by accident.?

This is a charming story, but unfortunately
not true. The tract Come By Chance, 50 acres,
was actually surveyed on 16 January 1719/20
for William Bennett. Two days later he assigned
his right to the property to John Dorsey, deputy
surveyor for Baltimore County. Dorsey con-
veyed the tract to James Catcham on 31 July
1727 in exchange for 2,400 pounds of tobacco.
In December 1744 John and Sarah Derumple
sold the land to Samuel Owings.?

There are no deeds among Baltimore County
land records showing any transfer of ownership
of Come By Chance between 1727 and 1744.
Thus it appears that Sarah Derumple was either
the widow of James Catcham or his daughter.

In fact, neither Richard Gist nor any member
of the Gist family ever owned the property.
Several accounts of the history of Come By
Chance claim that the oldest portion was erected
between 1733 and 1744, in which case the
builder would probably have been either Cat-

cham or Derumple, yet there has been no refer-
ence to either family in references to the Valley.
In this section of the house, the front or eastern
end, the walls are all 18 inches thick. A solid

- mahogany door opens into a front hall with a

parlor on each side and a lovely curving stair-
case leading to two bedchambers above. The
basement is native fieldstone. As we shall see,
it is doubtful the house was built before the
1830s.?

Samue]l Owings (discussed more fully in the
chapter on Green Spring Punch), retained this
property from 1744 until his death in 1775,
when the tract was left to his son, Bale Owings.
This Owings was a bachelor who, at his death

"‘on 30 December 1781, willed all his land equally
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to his three nephews: Samuel Owings III, son
of his brother Samuel, Jr; Bale Owings, son of
his brother Christopher; and Thomas Bale Ow-
ings, son of his brother Thomas. On 8 April
1791 Samuel Owings, Jr., released all claim as
heir-in-law to his deceased brother’s estate, and
the three nephews then divided the inheritance.
Samuel III received two parcels, totaling 133%
acres, of the tracts Urath’s Fancy, Come By
Chance, and Severn; Bale received 187%2 acres
of Urath’s Fancy and Severn (which he sold five
years later to William Stone); and Thomas Bale
received two parcels, totaling 218%2 acres, of
Urath’s Fancy, Come By Chance, Severn, and
Owings” Traverse. Interestingly, there is a deed
made by Samuel Il and Bale Owings granting
Samuel Owings, Jr., the right to enter their land
and cut a ditch to join the branches of the Jones
Falls clear across the Valley. However, this
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